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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To
The Members of Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GUIDELINE TRAVELS HOLIDAYS
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 . 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted company.
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Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 2 going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
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the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the
matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020° (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 1 43(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act,
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2024 taken on
record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) Since the Company's tumover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50 Crores and its
borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores,

controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017

(9) The Company being a private limited company, the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in respect of whether
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable: and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us;

a.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses: and

C. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

d.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 'Intermediaries’, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

i. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ji) contain any material
misstatement.

€. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly

reporting on the compliance with section 1 23 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for
the year under consideration,
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f.

Based on our examination which included fest checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made
using privileged/administrative access rights as described in note 36 to the financial
statements.

For Biyani Kabra & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101533w
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Partner \;1
Membership No. 038867 \('L\“\ F Z\a
Place: Mumbai = N T Ly

Date: 18.05.2024
UDIN: 24038867BKESEMA4950
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our report to the
members of Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited of even date)

1. | @) [Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

property, plant and equipment.
The Company does not have an intangible assets.

(b) | The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the management
during the year, According to the information and explanations given to us and as examined by us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we report
that, the Company does not hold any freehold and leasehold immovable properties of land and
building as at the balance sheet date.

(d) | The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use asset) during
the year. Accordingly, paragra h 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not a licable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

() | proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly,

aragraph 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable.
2. | The Company is having neither opening stock nor having closing stock. Therefore clause (ii) of paragraph
3 of the order is not applicable.

3 | In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made
investments in/ provided any guarantee or security/ granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly,

aragraph 3 (i) of the Order is not 3 licable

4. | In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans, investments,

guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and section 186 of

the Companies Act, 2013.

5. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

6. | The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)

of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and accordingly paragraph 3 (vi) of the

order is not applicable,

7._| In our opinion and accordin to the information and explanations given to us:
(@) | Amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including

(c) | There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on account
of dispute.

8. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions not

recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order

is not applicable.
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(a) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year,

(b) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no term loans were
taken during the year.

(d) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) | The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accordingly,
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (f) of the Order are not applicable.

(f) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

10. | (a) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) () of the Order is not applicable.

(b) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not
applicable.

11. | (@) | To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed or reported

o during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) | Since there is no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has
been noticed or reported during the year, paragraph 3 (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable,

(c) | To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

12. | The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Paragraphs 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14 | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
an internal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

15. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of
the Order is not applicable.

16. | (@) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

(b) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(c) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) | In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the Group.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

17. | The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year but incurred Loss of INR 3,300/~ in the
immediately preceding financial year.

18. | There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

19. | In our opinion and according to the information and explanaﬁous given to us and on the basis of the
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In our opinion and according to the information ang explanations given to us, Provisions of section
135 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

| (b) | This clause is not appiicable to the Com

For S. G. Kabra & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104507wW

@i

Shree Gopal Kabra
Partner

Membership No. 038867
Place: Mumbai

Date: 18.05.2024

UDIN: 24038867BKESEM4950
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Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate Information

Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited (‘the Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in
India and incorporated on March 22, 2011 under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 replaced
with Companies Act. 2013 w.e.f April 01, 2014. The Company is engaged in theTour Operating Service and
Allied Activities business..

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian
Accounting Standard (*Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation requirements of
Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1T). The financial statements
comply with Ind AS notified by Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA).

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of directors on May 18,2024,

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Company, to all the years presented in the said financial statements.

Accounting policies and methods of computation followed in the Financial Statements are same as compared with
the financial statements of the holding company (Easy Trip Planners Limited - formerly known as Easy Trip
Planners Private Limited) for the yvear ended March 31, 2024,

I'he preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest millions. except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

® Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For asscts and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between ley els in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
year,

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

2.3 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle. held primarily for the purpose of trading. expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting year, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months afier the reporting year.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily
for the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents,

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE')

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The initial cost of PPE comprises purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any
trade discounts and rebates). borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of
Profit and Loss at the time of incurrence.




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset
is derecognized.

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at

based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particulars Years
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Software 3
Lease Hold Improvements 10
Intangible Assets 10

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-
least as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives,
residual values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is
caleulated over the PPE"s remaining revised useful life.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item
can be measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on their specific
useful lives. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in
which they are incurred.

2.5 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

— the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to
dircct the use of the asset if either:

* the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

® the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Where the Company is the lessee




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Ihe right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlicr of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, i any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

~ fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase. extension or termination option,

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.c., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property,
plant and equipment” and lease liabilities in *other non-current financial liabilities® in the statement of financial
position.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Where the Company is the lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.
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Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases, Rental income trom operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.6 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at
settlement date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Classification

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified. at initial recognition. as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI) with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), designated at fair
value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) and
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial instruments at amortized cost

A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
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b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other
receivables,

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (*FVTOCI)

A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCIif both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash lows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments included within the OCI calegory are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL’)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for calegorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments
included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECIL allowance is recognized for trade receivables
with no significant financing component. For all other financial assets. expected credit losses are measured at an
amount cqual to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case. they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial
recognition.




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

ii) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilitics include trade
payables and other payables.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, or at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition. interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

2.8 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at the completion of services.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of airline tickets and hotel
packages as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the Company
does not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28. 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers Under Ind AS 113, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company
has adopted the new standard on the transition date using the full retrospective method.

Contract balances

Contract ascets

A contract assel is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.9 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of
the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent restatement / settlement, recognized in the statement of profit and loss
within other expenses / other income.

2.10 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid.

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits
under the plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried
out for using the projected unit credit method. In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the
employees in India are entitled for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to cligible
employces (meeting the required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of’employment, based on
a pre-defined formula. The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present
value of the defined benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present
value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates
of government bonds. The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount
rate to the plan assets and defined benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net
defined benefit liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of
the net defined benefit liability are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise. The said re-measurements comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions), the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-
classified to the statement of profit and loss in any of the subsequent vears.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected 1o be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability,
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2.11 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income
tax obligation for the year are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities. Any
interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income tax charge or
(credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in
the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the
current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

2.12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in
a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the vear are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.13 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the
effect of time value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.
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Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract. the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating o any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement,

2.14 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, in addition to above items, any bank overdrafts / cash credits that are integral part of the Company’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.16 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of
future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. The said estimates
are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide
additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses
these estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying
such estimates were reasonable when made. if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions
do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in
the year in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

a. Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balances and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible are provided in note 8 and 34,

b. Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benetit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.
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¢. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d. Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management
estimate,

e. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore. it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term. and with a similar security. the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

f.  Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lcase, together with any years
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain Lo be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease. if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
Jjudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.. construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). Termination options in given in lease of office space to the
lease. which have been included in the lease liability as Company is not intended to terminate the lease, Reason
for not 1o exercise the termination option is because Company requires the office premise for future period,
location of office premise is prominent and lease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in
respect to extension and termination option which is not included in the lease liability.
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. : As at As at As at
Particulary ik March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
ASSETS
L. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 0.05 - -
(b) Right of use asset 4 4.49 -
(¢) Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 5 20,11 - -
(d) Deferred tax asset (net) 0.68 - -
Total non-current assets 25.33 - -
IL. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 18.53 - -
(11) Cash and cash equivalents 8 16.41 0.00 0.00
(ii1) Bank balances other than (i) above 9 0.83 = =
(b) Other current assets 6 11.04 0.02 0.02
(c) Current tax asset (net) 23 (0,20) 0.02 0.02
Total current assets 46.61 0.04 0.04
Total Assets (I+11) 71.94 0.04 0.04
EQUITY AND LIABILI1 1ES
HL EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 0.25 0.25 0.25
(b) Other equity
(i) Retained earnings i1 13.96 (0.22) (0.22)
14.21 0,03 0.03
LIABILITIES
IV. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Lease Liabilities 30 2.30
(b) Long term provisions 15 0.89 - -
Total non-current liabilities 3.19 - -
V. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Trade payables 12
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: 0.16 - -
Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal] enterprises 34.52 0.01 0.01
(1) Other financial liabilities 13 1.27 -
(i11) Lease Liabilities 30 2.40
(¢) Contract Liability 14 13.50 - -
(d) Short term provisions 15 0.00 - .
(€) Other current habilines 16 2.69 - P
Total current liabilities 54.54 0.01 0.01
Total Liabilities 57.73 0.01 0.01
Total Equity and Liabilities (I+1V+V) 71.94 0.04 0.04
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
Netes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations 17 56.71 -
11 Other income 18 0.25 -
111 Totalincome (1 + I1) 56.96 -
v Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 15.55 -
Finance costs 20 0.55 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 1.29 -
Other expenses 22 20.42 0.00
Total expenses 37.81 0.00
% Profit/(Loss) before tax (1I-1v) 19.15 (0.00)
VI Tax expense: 23
Current tax 5.65 -
Deferred tax credit (0.68) -
Total tax expense 4.97 -
Vil Profit/(Loss) for the vear (V-VI) 14.18 (0.00)
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in 2%
subsequent years
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax - -
IX Total comprehensive income/(loss) of the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 14.18 (0.00)
Earning / (Loss) per equity share: 27
Basic EPS (In Rs ) 578.69 (0.13)
Diluted EPS (In Rs. ) 578.69 (0.13)
Summary of material accounting policies 2

T'he accompanying notes are an integral part of the financi
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Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 19.15 (0.00)
Adjustment for;
Depreciation and Amortization expense 1.29 -
Finance cost 0.53 -
Interest income (0.14) -
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivable (18.53) -
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (11.02) -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Pavables 34.67 -
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liablities 1.27
Increse / (Decrease) in Current liabilities 2.69 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 0.89 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Contract liability 13.50 -
Cash generated from operations 44.30 (0.00)
Income Tax paid (net of refund) (5.43) -
Net cash generated by operating activities 38.87 (0.00)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.06) -
[nvestment in deposits for more than 12 months (20.11) -
Investment in deposits for more than 3 months but less than 12 months (0.83) -
Interest received 0.14 -
Net Cash used in investing activities -20.86 -
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings = =
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - -
Principal and interest payment of lease liability (1.60)
Net Cash used in financing activities (1.60) -
Net Increase In/Utilisation of Cash and Cash Equivalents 16.41 (0.00)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 16.41 (0.00)
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.05
With banks
- On current account 12.35 0.00
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 4.01 =
Total (refer note 8) 16.41 0.00

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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(a) Equity Share Capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount

As at April 01, 2022 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 24,500 0.25
Add: Change in equity share capital during the period - g
As at March 31, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 24,500 0.25
Add: Change in equity share capital during the period - =
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 24,500 0.25

(b) Other Equity

Retained earnings Total other Equity
Balance as at April 01, 2022 (0.22) (0.22)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year (0.00) (0.00)
Add: Other comprehensive Loss for the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (0.22) (0.22)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 14.18 14.18
Add: Other comprehensive Loss for the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13.96 13.96

Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained carnings represents cumulative profits of the Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Summ Summary of material accounting policies 2

The ac The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Motes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: UaI090MHZONIPTC215102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

4 Property, plant and equipment

Computers Total
Giross Block
Balance as at April (11, 2022 - -
Add: Addition made during the vear - -
Less: Disposal during the vear - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Add: Addition made during the year 0,06 .06
Less: Disposal during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (.06 0.06
Computers Total
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - -
Add: Depreciation charge for the year - .
Less: On disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Add: Depreciation charge for the vear 0.01 0.01
Less: On disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.01 0.01
Met Block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.05 0.05
c\r?-"“m‘yﬁﬂ“'
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Cuideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: UG3090MH2011PTC215102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

4 Right-of-use assets

Total
Gross Block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 =
Additions -
Maodifications =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 *
Additions 577
Modifications i
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.77
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2022 "
Depreciation expense .
Balance as at March 31, 2023 -
Depreciation expense 1.28
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.28
Carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 =

Balance as at March 31, 2023 -

Balance as at March 31, 2024

&
=
I
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Gouideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Moies to finnncial statements Fur ithe Period ended March 31, I0Z4
CIM: Un30MH20 I PTC2 18002

All amounts in INE million, unless otherwise stated

5 OHher Mnancial assets

Mon-current
Depoastts with remanmmg matunty fos more than 12 menths

=

CHler assets

Current
Advance w supplicrs
Balmce with government authoribes

s ai A oab As al
arch 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
20,01
2011 -
Asat As at Asal
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023 _Apeil 00, 2022
11.04 - =
. (k02 {02
11,04 002 102

T his space hay heen intewtienally lefi blamih}




Gubdeline Travels Hididays India Private Limaned
Mot 1o Maancial statements for the Perind ended March 31, 2024
1N VSIS0 IPTC2 15102

All nmounts in

(H]

.

oilliom, widless prherwise stbed

Trade receivables
Deenails of trade veceivables is as Tollows:

As al As at As L
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Aprd 01, 2022
Trade recervahles from other than Related Parmics 18,53 A a
18,53 -
Asal Asan Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Apnl 01, W2
Trwile Heceivables
Comsidered pood - secured " = #
Censidered pood - wsecared 15.53 . .
Unidismsted erade receivables which have significam ierease i credit nsk - = -
1553 = %
Impairment allowanee {albvannee for bad and doabefil delbis
Unidespited Trade Receivnbles considered good - - -
Urssputed irsde recervables which have stamificant inerease in coedn nak - 3 &
Total Trade receivables IR.5 2 =
Musement in expected credit boss nllowance
As at As at As
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023 Apnil 91, 2022
Bnlances o the begonng of the vear s 4 o
Bad debd wndien off . . .
Additions durng the year p £ ¥
Balances at the end of the vear = = =
Trabe receivables Apeing Schedule
As al March 31, 2024
Ouestanding for follvwing periods Trom due date of payment
Cureent Less than |6 months - |
Farticulars bist mot due | Six manth year 1-2 years -3 vears Mure than 3 years Tastal
(1} Unehisputed Trade receivables — considered good B 1% 53 5 s & - 18.53
(it Undisputed Trade Recesvables — which have significant increase in
crednt nick - . ] - - -
Tatul - i:liiﬂj = = - - 18.53
Trade recemvables Apeing Schedule
As at March 31, 223
Crtstunding fur following perinds from due date of payment
Current Less than |6 months - 1]
Particulars bt nof due | Six ponaih yeRT 1-2 vewrs 2-3 years More than 3 years Tutul
{1 Undispuied Trace recevables — consuderad good N 3 E = . - %
() Undispated Trade Recervables — which have sipuficant merease n
credin risk x z i % = i
Tual % E = e #
Veade Feecivables Ageing Schedule
As an .ﬂmril 0L, Xkl
Crutstanding for following periods from due date af pay ment
Current | Less than |6 manths - |
Farticulars bait mod due | Six month yeur 1-2 yenrs 1-J vears Maore than 3 vears Tutal
(01 Undispaivesd Trade receivables = considered gmj - - = E 5 T =
(5] Uindispued Trade Regeivables — winch lave sigmificam iscrease m
credit nsk . F . . 5 i 3
Taral - - - - = = -

Maotes:
Trale recervables are nom-innerest heasng havang: credi penod of 0 o 38 dave

Mo trade o other receable are due from dirsctors orother stficers of the conpany either severally oo jomtly wath any

companics respecively m wineh amy dector 15 a pariner, o director o0 5 nember

1Ry Ty ey heew siremivansly e Wank)

cdler person. Mar any trade or ather receivable are due from Gnns or privade



Ciuideline Fravels Holidayvs India Private Limited

Mutes to financial stotements for the Peried ended Mareh 31, 2024
CIN: UsFOOOMHZOLIPTCZISI02

Al amounts in INK million, unless otherwise siated

& Cash and cash equivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

As Asoat As at
March 81, 2024 March 31, 2023 Aprid M, 2022
Cash on hand .0z -
Balances with hanks
Current acoount* 12.35 .00 (Y
Dreposits with eriginal matunity of less than three months 4.0 - 2
Total 16.41 0,00 .00
——
For the purpose of the statement of cash o, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Balances with banks:
Current peeount® 1235 .00 LA
Deposits with original matunty of less than three months 4.0 - -
Cush on hand LS - -
Total 1en41 (M} {106
her bank balances
As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Drepasits with original muturity of more than three months bul less than twelve L83 - -

.53

= 0K represants rounsdingod T norms adopied by the compans
This space s been imennionally left Sank)
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Lomideline Travels Hefidays lmadis Privete Lissited
Nedes 1 financial stasementy for the Persod ended March 31, 2024
LN L3 2010 PTC21 5002

Al amouniy i INR millin uinlesy oiferwsa: CET

1]
(E1]

(L]

fik

ik

‘el

[£11)

(L]

Eqwity Share Uapital
Details of shire capatal is a3 fodloms
Ag al Az Aaal
Mareh 31, honq Merch 31, 2001 Apnl U1, Juz
Equity share cagital
Authorised share capital
S0.000 (March 71, 7og3 50,000, Apeil D), 2022 50k, equity shtorcy of’ INR, Jik. cac .50 A5 {51]

Lesuedl, subscribed and Tully paid-up share capital
24,500 (March 71, 1003 24,500, Aeril 6. 2OZ2: 24,5000 exuiry shises ol INR. 111 gah 034 024 0.2%

Reconcilistion of autherise, isseed and subscribed share cagital:

Weconcilintion of authurised share capital as ai vear eng -

Wrdmpry Equity shares

As L April 01, 1022 dEquiry shares of INK b ench) S0 1M FR11]
lrease dunng the year - i
A al March S 20 {Equity shares of INR 10 ench| S0LTHH) [IETH
Inc regse durmg the year 2 2
Az ar March 31, 2024 {Equity shares of [N I eachp =TT LS
Hevunciligtion of B, subscribad and fufly Pait-up share capital g vers ¢nd
Equiny shares
M, of dhares Ambiuni

Urimary Equmity share =
Anal April W1, 2L (Equity shares of INK 1 i) 250 02s
Baircany duing ithe v - =
A wi Mawhjl,iﬂbtﬁ'.quuy shares of INK 1ibeach | HAH ¥
Incroase during the voar = 2

LY i L i
A ab March S0 2004 {Equity shares of INR 10 k| 24 5iH} [FE]

Torms/Rights sttacked s ity shares

The Company has caly une ¢lass Al equity shares baviig 2 par valoe AFERR W {March 312023 MR 10: Apnl OF, 2022 INR 1) per share The company doclares md Pevs dividend i badian nupees. Bach hokder of equity share is eniitled 1 ong
valz por shase, fa the cvent o liquidason of the Campary, the boldors of the oy shoress will by entiled o receive m of the remnmning assets of the Company, afler distnbubion ef all peeferentid mmounts The dignbuticn will be in propertion &
the mamber o equiny shares held by the sharghoiders The Compaity his not paid dhiden dunng the wment vear mmd previous finangial vear

Detaits of shareholders Bodding meve tham 5% shares i the dnmpaiy

Ay wl Asal AsM
Mame of sharelolder March 51, 1024 March 31. Jo23 Apnl ], 2022
Equily shares of INK 10 each {March 55, 2025 INK 10 each, April B, 023 [NK 1o e bodding in e e holding im the equity - “a holding in the
vach} fully paid Poal i eaquity shares Mool shara shares M. of dhares ety sharps
Pradoey sshng 11,95 4K 398, 24,400 LT M, a0 AL
Eaesy Trap Mlamsicrs Lumacd 12455 A1 . 0 - ey

Mg per the revonds of the Company, g luding s fepismer of sharchcldors’ members and other derlanmons reeen od from savehwlders reparding heneficial nteregl, e ahovyg shiweinlding reprasents both kgl and
benelcial ounerships of dhares

Draails o shares hodd by Promoders

A ae Mareh 31, 1024 Lhangy Auring the vear

Farticulars Promulers fame Mo af ghare at the Change due ta Chamge other ihan No of share a1 the o ol tedal shures e Uhmnge durisg the
Dreginning of ghe year Bnvms/gplil Bt it end af the ywwar FEAT
Espnty sharen of [NH 10 each fully pasd up Pridocp ashon 14 41 EE 11508 TR 1%
Exuaty slvwes ol PR 10 sach fully pawt s Monika Pradeep Limi [x7) hdle {14
by
Axat March i 2034 Chan ring the vesr
Farticulars Fromoters Mame Ne of share at the Change due 1o Change ather than Mo of share at the o o 1otul shiwres e Chasge duriag the
beginning of the Fear bl bl el of ihe yrar year
Exquity shares af INR 1 zach Tpiy Pasf up  Pradoep saboo 24400 = 4 400 [T %
Egpaury shares af TSR 10 wach Tully paid up Menika Pradeep T i} . [1151] nars i
L=
st Apnl 01, 1022 Change during b veas
Particulars Prosmuiers Name Ma of share af the Change due 10 Uhange ather than Mo of share ap the o o 100ad dhres e Uhange duning the
begimning ol the year Baanisspda enid of the yeas ar
Equity chares of INE 10 cty Fully ot up Prasleep sshaa 24,41 14,400 [ [T
Ecpuaty shates ol [NK 16 cach fulk Pardup Monika Pradeon BHI - i hdl% L
L =]
Dedmils of shares held by the Holdin coilgany = <
. As ut March 1, 1034 As at March 37, 2023 Ax at Apeil 08, 2023
Number of shiwren *a holfiag Masmber of shares " holdkag Mumbser of dgres * holding
Equity Shares
Eie Trin Planner Limited 12,495 0ip Ef%y - =

(Tl sy s B mrcminmitly fork ik




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 3, 2024
CIN: Us3090MH2011 PTC215102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

1T Other Equity
() Retained earnings

As at April 01, 2022
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income/( loss) for the vear net of tax
As at March 31, 2023
Add: Profit for the vear
Add: Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year net of tax
As at March 31, 2024
(This space has been intentionally lefi hilcnk)

Amount

(0.22)
(0.00)

{0.22)
14.18

13,96




Couideline Travels Helidays India Private Limsied
Modes to Minaneil ststemends Tor the Peried ended March 31, 2024
] BINSNHOL L PTCE S 102

AN smannis in INR million, unless ntherwise staded

13 Trade payabies

As 51 Asal As
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Apnb Q1 Jogs
(8} Trade payabies

= okl outstanding dues of miicrn enlerpnses ard smali enterpnise [N 1) - =
= 1dal outstandieg e af credions other than micro onterposes and siall el se 14 52 B0 a1
Tutal 34,68 L] [EXiT]
Trade payable 468 an ]

Trade payalbdes 1o relaied parises A & Fi
1408 [ 0]

Trade paables ane nen-interes bearing ard sre nermally seetlud on 0-50 day wermes
The amount dhe b micra, small and medium encemprises as defined an the "The Micra,
on the basis of ifarmation available with Company. The disclusures redaging b the macro, small and foadium enlerprises e as follows

)
it}

Detsils of dives o micro nmgd Sl enterprises 92 defined under the MEMED Acr, fong

Sl and Medium Enterprises Devlopment Acr. 20067 ("MEMED) has been determined to the extont ssch parties have been identified

At Asar Asal S
—_March 3], 2024 March 31, 2001 Apnil 01,2022
e principal ameong and the amirest dye therges remAImng unpasd e =applier ns ai the enid
af each scouniing vew
Erancpel smoun due o micro sod small erterpen s - ' N
[nsterest due on aboe s - .
Thi smoune af inienest paid by the Faiver in srms af' soction 14 of the MEMED A 200¢ along P
wilh the amounts of e pavmest made 1o e zupplaer beyond the mppoinced day dunag each
ACCoiEling year
The amerint of interest dug gmd Pevable Ear the penod of delay in mmaking payient {which hgve 3 - -
Been paid b bevond the appeinied day during the pericd) bul withaut ackhng the mteres
spediliod under the MEMED Ac
The amuand of inferest act rued and remsming unpind archi end of gach RCCONNAg vear 2 . =
The aniount of Further isteres femaning due and payabile aven in the succeeding vears, uniil - = “
suach date whei the interest dues s ahove ane fctually paid 1o the small enlerprise for the
purpose of disallowance asa deductibde expenditire under section 23 of e MSMED At 2He
Trade Payabile Ageing Sehediale
As ar March 31, 224
i Dhetstnnding For FoBawing jieriss Tram due date of payment
- Tutal
Particulary Mt Dhe Less than | year 1-2 years I-3 vewis Mare than 3 Year
(11 Tl outstancing duss of migro enterprises g
small enlerprises - undisputed > 06 . x 016
(i} Total cunstanding does ol crediiong othes than
mena dbepnses and swall onteroses « ursdispured - B4 52 - = a 1452
| S - ek « | 2 B 2
Trade Fayalle Ageing Schedule
As an March 51, 2023
Urarstanding fur rvnlll.wri* [Friuds Froam due dare of [y meni Totad _|
Pasticulnrs Mot D Less than 1 year 1-1 years 13-4 veary More than 3 years
(1) Tetal oulstandiog dues of micrn Enlepanses and
small entorprises - undispuled -
1) Towml vutstEnding dues of creditars pifser than
EEr anterposes: and simall enve prises - unds spuled = | agi a1
Totsl & i) -] . - 0]
As At April BF, 322
Duistnmding for Follawing periods from due date of [y ment
Farticulers Nl [hue Less than 1 wear 1-2 vears 25 years Mure than 3 years Taial
(i} Total cutstanding Goes af e enterprises and
small enterprises - undisputed . = 5 2 - .
(i3 Tiotal dilstanding dues of creditoes ather than
T enterpicses and small EnrTpnses - undispeitid - ool - - ol
Tatal 5 el o= 2y * aaj
13 Arher Binamcial linbilses
Asal Axar Asar
Marck 31, 2024 March 31, Jo2t Apnif 1], 2022
Curreni
Emploseie benelits payabie L7 2 5
Faywhle 1o related parties [ Refer g T3y J-n = -

LETTT

(e e b buew aiterdnanally e Al )




Guideline Travels Hulidays India Privage Limited
Motes to financial stutements for the Perviog ended March 31, 2024

CIN: Un30onniizgg LFTC215102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

14 Contract liability

Advance lrom custimers
Total

Total current
Total non- current

I3 Provisions
(a) Details of provisions are uy Forllovw s:

A. Non- current

Provision fur employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 28}
Total f.*'l}

B. Current
Provision for employee bemefits
Provision for pratuiiy [refer nole 8|

Provision for compensated absences (refer note 24)

Total (3}
Total (A+B)

Taotal current
Total men- current

1o Other curvent liabilities

Other statutory dues
Provident fund payahle
Tax deduction at source pavable
Gonds and service tax payahle
Professional tax payahie

Tuotal

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Az at
April 01, 2022

13.50

13.50 - 2
B e

13.50

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Az al
April 01, 2022

0.89

.59

00

LI}

.55 -
_—

LRI
.59

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

As al
April 01, 2022

003
0.%6
169
i1

2.6

(s space has been imtentionally lefi blank)



Guideline Travels Holidavs India Privare Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: TUa3ONMH20 | TPTC215102

Al amounts in INKE million. unless atherwise slated

17 Revenue from aperations

tal Disaggregated revenue information
Set out helow is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

I'vpe of services
Rendering of services
Alr Passage
Horel Packages
Crther services

Total revenue from operations

Timing of revenue recognition
Services ransferred at o point in ime
Services transferred over (ime

Total revenue from contracts with enstomers

Revenue from operations

Revenue including tour packages
Less - Package cost simultaneously incurred

MNet Revenue

()

Set out below, is the reconciliation of the revenge from operations with the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

Revenue
External eustomers
Inter-segment

Inter-segment adjustments and eliminations

Total revenue from aperations

ey Contract balances

Trade recervables
Contract lahilines

i) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Revenue as per contracted price

Mdjustmenits
Less, [nscounts offered to ¢ustomers {ned)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(e} Performance obligations

Information about the Cumpuny's performance obligations are summarised below:
The transuction pfwc-fl}_ﬂc‘ﬁtﬁd w'the spimaining performance ohligations { unsgus
7 = P — 1 e ——

- T

6,38 -
49.60 -
0.73 -
56.71 X
S
56,71 -
5071 =
For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16350 -
{107.19)
56,71 -
For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5671 =
50.71 -
56,71 =
For the vear ended As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
18,53 A
13.50 -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
56,71 -
56,71
For the vear ended As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023




Gouideline Travels Hulidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Feriod ended Mareh 31, 2024
CIN: UI0M0MH2OTIPTC2 15102

All amounis in INK million, unless otherwise stated

Within ane vear
Mdiare than one veur

Fotal revenue from tperations

(s space has been inseitionally fefi blank)




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Nates to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: UaIOMHZOTIPTC2IS102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

I8 (Mher income

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other non-operating income
Interest imeome:
On deposits with bank 0.14
Exchange Gain (net) i1
1L.25

.-_____________—'-.______

(This space has been trrentionally lefi bank)




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: Us3090MHZM IPTC2ZIS102

All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

19 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 14.02 -
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.51 -
Gratuity expenses (refer note 28) 0.89 -
Staff welfare expenses 0.13 -
—_— i 15.55 _ -

20 Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on:
= On lease liabilities (refer note 30) 0.53 -
Bank charges 0.02 -

Toral 0.55 -
%

21 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deepreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) .01 =
Amortisation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) |.28 -
Tuotal _ 128 S -

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended Murch 31, 2024

CIN: UadioM o PTC 215102
All amaounts in INR million, unless herwise stated

11

(ah

(iher expenses

Power and fiaed

Rent

Repair and maintenince

- Oithiers

Advertising and sales prometion
Commizsion

Travelling expenses

Communicuzion costs

Primting and stationery

Legal and professional expenses
Payment o auditors frefer note {a) bebow]*
Provision for Contingency
Membership & participation clurjes
Miscellanesus expenses

Details of payment made to anditors are as follaws:

As anditors:
Audin fap® =+
Chhers Services**

*Audil fees does not includes GST and any other applicable @yes

000 represents roundingoff norms adopted by the company

S aRA &“‘j‘;
i — .’r__.'{\{
i o < 'Jw._}_
_'I_'l.? "r_ :‘.."
SR G|
- if

%

(Thix space faas been atentionafly feft Blamk)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended March

31,2023

020

33
1,73
11,84
191
o7
020
0,24k
013
1.50
Lo
027

20,42

Far the year ended Fur the year ended March
March 31, 2024 31, 2023

0,13 .00

. (104

.13 L))




Ciuideline Travels Holidays Iadia Private Linsited

Naores o fiaanciol statements for the Period onded March 31, 2024
M UnMPAMHZO I FTC215102

Al spsonnts i INK million, snless otherwise siated

13 Income tax

The magor components ol wkoine lax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and Maseh 31 X128 are

I Imgwme tax expinse i the statement of profid and boss com prises:

Carrent income tax:

Lwrrenl meame inx charge

Adjustment m respect of ciament ineoime lax of previous year
Deferred g

Retaning 1o orsgination and reversal of temporary differernces

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

il Ohker comprehensive inconse (00T section

Drelerred tas velatimg to items in 041 during the yvear:
He-meamrement lossignins) on delined benefit plans

(i) Recomciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the lndia's Domestic tax rate(s) far Mar 31, 2024 and Mar 31, 2023

Accounting profit belore inceme Lux
Frofit £ [loss) betore e from o disconnnusd operancn
Accounting profit before imcome Ly

At Indha's stabmtory ineome 185 rate of 26% (March 31, 2023 25 1T%)

Non-deducishle expenses far plIrpses
Monsinxable meame for s parposes
Utthers

Income tax expemse

Irconme tay expense reponed m the smtemens of profic and loss
Income tax anribsabde o o docontmued cperastion

Current tay assed {net)

Current fax asset (ref)

24 Liabdlities Tor carrent tas {ned)

TVax lkabiligies

Current i Hisbidines (oet)

15 Dweferved tax nsset {net):

Reconcilistion of deferred fay sssed {ned |z

Ul Bk of deferrod tas asset (mer) as st Apnl 01

Tax ncometexpense] dunreg the year recogmssd o prodin or logs

Tax incometexpense] dunng the year recogmised i OOl
Closng balamee of deferved tas asset (net) os at March 31

Thy space fas been wicanamaily feff blanki

For the year el Far the year eaded
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5465 -

{0.68) -

497 .

For the year smdpd
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Far the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

19,18 41, 0M8)
19,15 [LRET]
T Lo
(i) 4
4597 (LA
4.97 -
497 -
As at As ol
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(.21 002
[1L21F) 0.0
— “m
As al Ag at
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023

For the vear gaded
March 31, 2024

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

od

L6
==




Couideline Travels Holidays Indin Private Limited

Motes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: Ua30nH200 1 T2 IS 102

Al amounts in INK million, unless otherwise staged

In

7

al

(k

]

Companents of (ther Comprehensive Income

Phe disapuregation of changes 10 OCT by each tvpe of reserve in egurty 15 shown balow
Retasined earnings
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Re-measurement gains! (losses) on delined benefit plins = x
Income tax effect ] 2

Earnings per share (FPs)

Basie and diluied EPS amounis ase caleulnted by dovedang thee prodin ror the vear annbutable to equity holders of the Campany by the weighted average number of eq wity shares
wutstanding during the year

The following table reflects the profit and share Sata used in the basic and diluted EPS com putitions

For the vear ended For the yvear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mumber of squity shares at the Begimnimg of the vear 24,500 24,500
Equity shares isseed during the financial year ¥ ¥
Number of equity sharves outstanding o0 the end of the vear 24,500 24,500
Weighted average mumber of equity shaves outstanding during the year 24,500 24,500
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profic after tws watribatabile 1o the equity holders lor basis and diluted EPS 14.18 (U]
Weghted average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS 24,500 24,500
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share |Face value INR 10 per share| STH.69 (.13}

Watghted averuge number of shares is the number of squity shares outstanding il the begimning of the vear adjusted by the number of equity shares issued during year, multiplied

by the time werghtng factor The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of iofal number of days during the year.

{his spwie hos bren imentanally feit Mank)




Cauideline Traveds Holidays India Private Limited

Mentes o finamcial statements For the Perbod ended March 31, 2014
CIN: UaMAiMH2011PTC2 15102

All amounts in INK million {unless otherwise stated)

(i

(i}

Employees Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company makes comribution towards Prosadent Fund and Fenson Scheme ta the defined contribaution plans fos clynble employees

Iie Company has charped the following costs i Coninbuatien ta Proy et Funed ansf Otther Fuinds in the Statement of Profit and Loss--

Prcticalirs Fur the year emde Far the year ended
March 31, 1024 March 31, 2023

Employer's contrilwetion to Provident fund and pension scheines 051 =

Tutal .51 N

Dhefined Benefit Plans

Caramuiny

The: pramrty plan 12 governed by the Pavinent of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Act, emplovees who have completed five vears of service are entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benafit provided depends on the members lemgth of service and salary retirement age. The emplayee is entitled 1o & benefil squivalent 1o 15 days
salary List diwn For each complered yvenr of service with pan thereol in exeess of six months subject o maximom limit of INE 2 millicn. The same is pavable on
termination of service or retirement or denth whichever 15 enrfier

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefil plan 15 deteennned based on an actuarial valustion as a1 the reporting date wsing the projected unit
credit method, which recogmises each venr of service as gving rise to additional unit of employes benefit entitlement and meisures cach unit separately (o build up
the fsal ohligtion The obligations are measured at the present value of the estnated futuse cash fows. The discount rate used for defermining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plans is based an the market yrebids on Government bonds as at the date of actarinl valustion, Actuarial gams and losses (net of
fan} are recopnized immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

The Company kas a unfunded defined benefit Eratuty plan

The followmg tables summarise the components of net benafil expense recopmsed in the stalement of profits or lesses and amounts recopmsed in the balanes sheet
lor the respective plans

Benefit labiliey

Asat Asat As at
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April i1, 2022

Present value of uldigntion ar beginning of the year i
Inferest cosg A
Current servige oost (.89
Actuanal (loskgain on obligation

- Econgmic assumptions .

- Denoygraphic assumptions :

- Expenence adjustment =
Benecfits paad :
Fresent value of oldigation at the chsing of the year 11,85 - =

Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profio and 1.oss:-

For the vear emied For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost — -
Met interest om net defined benefit liability / {asset) 4 .
Expense recoznised in the Statement of Profit and Los [ -
Laratuity Cost recognised through Other © amprehensive Income:-
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Actuanial (gns)  losses
change in Nuancial assunptions
- change in demographic assumptions
= ERPCTIence vananee [Le, Aclual EXPEMENGE: V5 assunphions) -




(1vh

i

v}

Ihe principal actuaril assumplions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:
Asal As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 011, 2022
Iscount rale 1.25% -
Future salary increase 10.00% -
Average expected future working life (vears) 1826 -
Expected rate of retum on plan assel
Retizement age (vears) 58 Years -
Mortality rates il isive of provision for disalili R I':l;""“ w2
Withdrawal rste (per annum
Lip1o 30 years e -
From 37 vears 1o 44 years R =
From 44 years 1o 5K years X - -
*Infin Assured Lives Morality (200 2-14) Ultimare represents published fmortality table used for mortalit asswmption
A quantitative sensitivity analvsis for significant assumpiion is as shown below
As an Asat As i
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Apreil 01, 2022

Impact of the change in discount rate
al lmepact due to inerense of 030 4 (0,06
B bmpnet due e decrease of (050 % 047

Impact of the change in salary incrense
al lmpact due 10 increase of .50 % 007
Brp Limpact due to decreass of 030 % (0

The sensinivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrpolates the impact on the defined benefit ebliganion as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analvsis are based on 4 ehange in @ significanm assumption, keeping all ather
sestmplions consiant and may not be representative of an acnial chienge in the defined benefil ubligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumplions would ocewr in

1salation of one another

The flbiwing payments are expected contributions 1 the defined benefit obligation in future venrs;

Oto 1 Year
I te 2 Year
210 3 Year
ERGE I T
dto S Year
B by M Yeur

e
Fam & o4g -,
B i,
o i
N 7
3
b |
5 i
: -
— | ]
al X % /!
* Fry,
AT
& . ;’,//

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 51, 2023

L
0.00
o.an
000
.k

.78




Leusdeline Travels Holidavs India Private Limited
Motes to financial siatements for the Periad ended March 31, 2024
CIN: UGIFNMHZO IPTC215] 02

Al amounts in INH million {mless atherwise state)

29 Related Farty Disclosures
() Names of related parties and related party relationship

tit Holding Company
Easy Trip Planners Limited (w e £ 02 At 2023 *

{5} Key manngerial personnel (KM
I Pradeep Prabhashankar Saboo {Whole Time Director)
2 Muoneka Saboo { Whole | ime Disectar

fii) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel or their refatives
1. Bhrish Sabao
2. Pratham Subao
3 Yaurag Kabra
4, Raina Kabra
3B 8 Truvels Pyt Lid
Guidelime Travels LLP

=

* Easy Trip Mlanners Limied has beer acquired 1% sharcholding woe | 02 August, 2003 thereby noquining the majer control over the entity




Guideline Travels Hualidays India Private Limited

Notes to financigl statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIN: 1 BIHUOMH2011 PTC215102

All amounts in INR million {unless sthern ist stated)

Related Pg riy Diselosures (( ‘onid,..)

(d) Details of related Parly transactions are as below :

[ For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount Amount
A) Salary paid during the vear

Pradeep Saboo (.80
Munika Saboo &0
Shristi Sabon (.80} -
Pratharm Saboco 0,801
Yatiruy Kabra (L850 .
Rama Kabra 11,80 -
(B) Rent expenses paid
B S Travels Pt Lid 160
) Tickets, hotels amd prackages purchased
Easy Trip Planners Limmed 131 =
() Tickets, hotels and packages sold
Easy Trip Flanners Limited 4.98 -
(E) Interest free Loan Received
Pradecp Saboo b26 -
(F) Interest free Loan Repayment
Pradeep Saboo 9,26
(G Received from Guideline Travels LLF (LLF received from Debtor on behalf of Company and
then Transferved from 11LP 1 Company )
Giudeling Travels LI P 2692 -
(H) Commission Income
Guideline Travels LLP .52
) Commission Paig
| Casy Trip Planners L imied 004

il e f’\‘-‘ e .J'F'. A

& ¥ I'II: -_-" 1

3 u (1 wimiAL

( ) W \
A W= e
i | Y v/




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31,2024
CIN: Uﬁ}l.'r'l'l.'IMHEi]l'IFI'('.'IISII}I

AN amounts in INR million {unless otherwise stated)

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...}

|_Psu.rtiq:ul.sln.-

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31,2023

Amount

Amount

{A) Balance Payable at the vear end

Easy Trip Planners Limited

0.08

a




uideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Wotes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024

ClIN: l'b.il}w.\l.lllﬂl1lﬁ"l'('21.5|ui
All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

30 Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Compuny has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' using the modi

et pul below are the carrying amounts of right-ol-us

fied retrospective approach from April 1, 2022,

¢ assets recognised and the movements durmg the year:

Particulars

Total

As at April 1, 2022
Additions

Dieletions
[epreciation £xpense

As at March 31, 2023

Additions
Delenions

Diepreciation sxpense
As at March 31, 2024

S ot helow are the carmying amounis of lepse habilit

s recognised and the movemenis during the year:

Particulars

Total

As at April 1, 2022

Addditions

Deletions

Aceretion of intgrest

Payments of principal and mterest

As at March 31, 2023

Additions

[eletions

Acerction of interest

Pavments of principal and interest

As at March 31, 2024

The following is the break-up of current and non=current lease labilities

Particulars s at March 31,2024 Asal March 31, Asat April 1, 2022
2023

Lense Lighilitics {Mon-current] 2.30 -

Leage Liahilities { Current 2.40 - =

Tutal 4,70 - =

The elfective interast rate for lease labilities 15 15.00%

I'he following are the amounts recopnised in profit or loss

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, Asat April 1,2022

23

Depreciation expense of right-nf-use 455¢ts 1.28 - -
Interest expense on lese liabilities 0.53 - -
Variahle lease payments (included in other expenses ) - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1.81 - -
Maturity analysis of lease lahilities are as fusllow 52 As et Mk 31, 2024 b :Elril.rirh I asw April 1, 2023
Less than 3 monihs 240 - -
1o 12 months 240 -

| 5 years (.80 - *
= & vears - z
Tatal 5.6l . =

(This space has been trrenticonally lefi Blank)
g
e &




Cuideline Travels Holidays Tnilia Private Limited

N i Gnamcinl sestements for the Period esded Mareh 31, 2034
e LGHOMHIA TS 10T

All amounts i INE million, woles glberirmion plated

# Capital Manngesoil
For thve purpose of Compa 5 chpeinl Fanigement, capital includis tsued wquily capilal, Securties peemmen and all otier ety rEserves alfidvsebli 10 fhe equity holders. Tha primary hactive 0f the Company’s capiin
AT T R A Fe sharehokder value

i light of changes m ecanans conditions To mantam or s the capital stnaciure, The Compasy may adjust petam capital 10 sharehalders o wwoe ne

The Company masages s capilal struciurs and makes adjustments 10 12,
o Cnmpary inchudes within nes dt, interest Deanng bearowings. trasdhe snd oher payabbes, bess cash e cash

shares. The Compairy moniors Sapilal LSRR 4 grarng Fats, which 15 et debe divided by nael copisal s met et Th
eiuraknls

I'radke Fayables reter rode 32

Lease Linkilibes
[ f*ﬂt-.Lndcsh'-.-:quual-:uhi:cr:-rmmn'l 1.0} {1011
et dobis {04 (0000
Equity shiee copeiel (refier mode 100 hid LIl 3 0y
Ciger equity (relier niete L1) 1156 {221 {234
Toal capital 1421 am Gl
Cagpitsd snd net dete 150 0% 0.0%
-468.29% =L 92% -3.23%

Genrimg ratio | %)

P chisrgges. wte made in the ahpetives, poliies or piossses far managing caprial dunng the vear ended Sareh 11, 2074, vear anded March 31,2003 and year wnded March 51, 2002

s apace s tioem imentionally Lefi ks
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CTM: URIMSATHINT L FTC 15182
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33 Fair velue mepsaresenls

ot o b, 152 cospaisan by <lass af the oy ey, asinin s fur calue ol the Compan s financial instramts. including thirs: wih Garrying ameets that an reasanatrl appreoiimanon of {uir vakecs

Carrying value Fnir xnlue
s ar Az at
Farlicalars [
Financual assets

¥ inmncial assers af pmmorcised cov

Trade recenables 1883 1853 - -
{Canh and cash poperakenis 14l I IHI Le ) [[R 1] QiH 1 W}
(Hher financial mests kAl - i k10 * .
Hank balinces oiher than casl wd cosk cquivalon hHY - - L] - -
Tatal S5A8 0146 LY 5554 Wi AL |
Finangis lishilitsrs

Toude panakles 3468 il il AR nak 0l
Lo Linkililics 4.7 . . 470 E -
Cotheer finsponl kbiifies 127 - - 133 + :

[ Total 4065 1011 il Alss AL [}
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Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to finpncial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2024
CIM: UGI0S0MHZ0NTPFTC215102

All amounts in TNE million, unless atherwise stated

34 Fair value hserarchy

All finaneial mstruments for which Fair valug is recogrsed or discinsed are categorised withn the far value hicrrchy, described as follows, hased on the Jowest level
inpait that s significant o the fair value measirement i whali

Level 1 This level of hierarchy inclusdes linancinl assets that are measured by refereice o quoted {unadpusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites

Level 2: Tis bevel of higrarchy includes financial asets that ure measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for such
items, directly or indirectly

Leved 3 This level of hierarchy mcludes ilems medsured using o valudtion model based on assumptions tha are neither supperted by prices from ohservable curnent
markes trasactions in the same instruments nor bised on avilable market dam

The following table provides the Far value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilitices

Fair value measarement hierarchy Tor assets as at March 31, 1024:
Fair value measarement wsing

Crunted prices in
active markes (Level
)

Tatal Significant ohservable  Significant unobservable

inputs {Level 2) inputs (Level 3}

Financial assets measured at Fair value

Investments af far value through profie or loss
< Mutsal funds

= Shares

- Bonds

- Debentures

Onher financial asacis
Interest acerued on bonds - x 2
Interest acerwed on debenfures . . - E

There are ao transfer between levels during the period ended March AL, 2024,

Fair value mensurement hierarehy for assets as at Mareh 3, 2025
Fair value measurement using

Cuoted prices in
active markets {Level
1p

Total Significant ohservable  Significant unohservable

inpuats (Level I} inputs {Level 3)

Financial assets measured af Faie value

Iivesiments i Fair volue through profit or loss
- Mutusal funds
- Shares
Hamds
- Debentures = - - *

CHher financial assets
Inferest accred on bonds ! -
Imerest aoeruad on debentures . . s -

There mre no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2623

Fair value measurement herarchy for assets as ol April 1, 202

Farr value measurement ustng

T'otal Chuoed prices in active  Significant ebservable Significant unohservable
markets {Level 1) inpats (Level 23 inputs (Level 31
Investments al T value through profit or loss
- Butual funds
- Sharcs - i 5
- Borkls . . 5 4

- Dehentures - = 2 b
et finangial nsaes

Iterest accrued on onds
Interest acereed on debeniures

[here are no nsier between levels during the year ended Apnl |, 2022 o —




Guideling Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Nites s fnancial statements Tor the Perlod ended March M, 2024

CIN: Lo H 2B P TC215002
Al nmounis in ISE million, unless otherwise stated
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Financial risk managem ent sbjectives and policies

The Company's activities ane exposed o vancty of financial fisk, o
Compamy’s serior managsment ensures that the Company's Finscial Hisk activities are govemed
in accoedance with the Company”s policres and risk objectives The Company revisws anid aprees

Credit risk

Crechit risk is the nsk that 4 countes |
operaling activibes (prismarily trade receivabbes), inchaling deposits with

Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Cre

sarty will not meet 18 ebligations under & financial malruiment ar cusomer

which the Company grams sredst ferms i the nesmal coarse of Tasiness

il risk is managed by the Company thragh credi approvals, estabdishing

The agemg mnalysis ol irade receivibbes as of the repornng date 15 as follows

redit risk, lquidiny risk mnd foreign currency risk. The Company's sen
| lre appregriate pelicies and procedures
an policics for managing cach of these risks which are summarized below

far nsndgement oversees the management of these risks, The
and that Ginancial risks are wlemified, measured and managed

contrgt, leading 1o a fimancial loss. The Company is expased be credit nsk from ite
banks and financtal institutions, foreipn exchange ransactions and ather financial instruments.

credat Timets and continuotsly monitosng the eredipweathiness af cusiomers @

Particulurs Mt Db 1o Hbdays 31 1o ol duys 1 1o b days 91 g [50 days  More than IS0 days Tatnl
As at March 31, 2024 3 | 508 411 131 002 - 18.53
Ag ot March 31, 2003 - - - - % - .
As an Aprit 1, 2022 - . - - - - =
*The ageing of wade recenables does not include expested credd loss
Expected credit loss for trade receivubles using simplified approach

March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023 As oot April |, HI2T
Gross carryng amound 18.53 - -
Expmected credit losses (Lass allowance provision) - 5 .
(Simce there are s presious wale-ofl in the balances Ipence po provision for expected eredit loss has been created)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impoirment ) 18,53 - *

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk = the risk that the Comgpiany may not be able to meet #s present and future cash and
rimes maintain eptimum levels of lquidity 1o meet ils cash and collateral regmrements. The Company

marntains ndequate sources of financimg icluding loans froam ‘baiks at an aptimised cost

Il tahile belsw summarkses the maturity peofile of the Company's financial liahilities based am o

wtraciual undiscounted paymenis.

collaeral abligations withour incurring, unaccephable lssses. The Coenpany’s ohjective is Lo, at all
chasely monitors iis lquidity position and deploys a robust cash manngement system. 1

As al March 31, 2024 Carrying amount__ On Demand  Less than 3 months Jto 12 months Lo 3 years = 8 years Total

Trude payables 34 68 LR N1 - - - 3468
Other fmancaal habilities 127 = 127 . . = .27
Lease Liakalies 4.7 - 140 A0 0 R0 - 5,60
Jusa s : 3 L om0 : it
A at March 3, 2023 Carrying amount___ On Demand  Less than 3 monihs 3 1o 12 monihs 140 8 years = 5 years Toisl

Trade payables (FLi1] . a0l . . - 0,01
Oher fnancial linbalities v T e . r
Lease Liabalies - . - B 3 -
Tutal ARl = 0,01 = . 4 [T
A at April 1, 2021 Carrying smount _ On Pemand  Less thun 3 months 3 g0 12 months | to § years = 5§ years Tal

Trade payables (R . a.ul . - : 0.01
Oither fimaneaal babalitics - - . - = - .
|ense Liabilanes - - . B . s -
Tuotal LA = 0,01 - = - A

(This spave fas feen ireatoally eft Indervaky




Guideline Travels Holidays India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31,2024
CIN: Ub3090MHZ011PTC215 102

Allamounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated

36 Audit Trail
The Company has used accounting software for malntaning its books of account which has » Teature of recording audit tr

feature 15 not enabled for certain changes made using privileged access rights
Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered which was noted n respect of other software

ail (edut log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail

kY Ratio Analysis and its elements
Ratio analysis and its elements l Numerator l Denominator AN st 1 % Change [Reason of Variance
. March 31, 2023
) Current ralip Cutrent assets Current liabilities _gn 4.06 -78.95% | Refer Note | below
e ————— 100 00%[Refer Note 1 below
(LossVEamings for debt seryioe Debt service = Interest &

Net (loss¥profit after taxes + Non- Lease Payments + Principal
cash operating expenses Repayme:

10.00 - 100.00%] Refer Note | below

d) _Inventory wimover ratio Refer Note | below

(¢) Trade receivables umover ratio Average Trade Receivable 6.12 # 100.00%| Refer Note | below

/

Net sales = Total sales - sales

retum
(0 Trade payables wumover ratro Net Purchases Average Trade Payables - 0.00%)] Refer Note | below

Refer Note | below

(8)  Net capital tumover ratio et sales = Total sales -sales [ Warking capital = Curreat @15 . 100.00%| Refer Note 1 below
retum assets — Current liabilities

_-_—*_———______. |

[ Return on equity ratio Net (Loss)Profits after laxes Average Shareholder's Equity ] 1.99 0.12)] -1799.23%

Total sales

. . N le:
(1) Net profit ratio Net (Loss)/Profit otk

0.25 - 100 00% | Refer Note 1 below
return

sales

LossVEamings before interest and |© M Employed = Tangible
:“‘: PR T Net Worth + Total Debt + 137 © ml -1 198.12%Refer Note | below
e Deferred Tax Liability

() Retum on capital employed

Note I: Vanance is mainly on account of mimmal / no operations duning the previous financial yeats as compared to current year

(This space has been insentionally loft blank)




